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Date: October 31, 2016 ITEM 5.5 

To:  Redevelopment Authority Citizens Committee 
  Meeting of November 7, 2016 

From:  Lee Plemel, Director 

Subject: Possible action to make recommendations to the Redevelopment Authority 
regarding amendments to the Redevelopment Façade Improvement Program to 
clarify eligible and ineligible improvements.  

 
 
RECOMMENDED RACC MOTION:  I move to recommend to the Redevelopment Authority 
amending Section 2 of the Redevelopment Façade Improvement Program requirements, to read 
as follows:  
 

2.  Ineligible Properties:  Ineligible properties include properties already 
receiving tax incentives or other financial incentives from the City, 
residentially-zoned properties, buildings that were constructed or have 
had façade improvements completed within the last five years, 
properties for which property taxes are owed and not paid up to date, and 
properties with outstanding or unresolved code enforcement issues, and 
properties on which construction of the proposed improvements 
have already been started. 

 
And I move to recommend amending Section 3 of the Redevelopment Façade Improvement 
Program requirements, to read as follows: 
 

3.  Eligible Improvements: All exterior building façade and wall signage 
updating and maintenance, including but not limited to painting, lighting, 
awnings, doors, fascia, and other decorative elements are eligible to 
receive Façade Improvement Program funds. Freestanding signs, roof 
decking material, landscaping, paving and other improvements not 
affixed to the building are is not an eligible expenses. For the 
purposes of this policy, exterior building façade includes all 
portions of a building, excluding the roof, visible from the public 
right-of-way or on-site parking lot.  

 
DISCUSSION: 
The Redevelopment Authority/Board of Supervisors approved the Façade Improvement 
Program (FIP) on May 3, 2016, and allocated $200,000 for the program through Fiscal Year 
2016-17. To date, $198,475 has been awarded to façade improvement projects.  
 
Through the application review process, several questions have come up from various RACC 
members regarding the eligibility of certain requested improvements. These various issues are 
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captured in the applicable policy sections in the recommended motion, above. Staff 
acknowledges that there has not necessarily been a consensus among RACC members 
regarding the proper interpretation of the policies and/or the intent of the policies. The RACC 
may discuss the individual components of the proposed changes and adjust the recommended 
motion, accordingly. Following is an analysis of the issues that have been raised that are 
addressed in the recommended amendments.  
 
Ineligible properties – One application was received by RACC for which construction had 
already started. The RACC denied the application based largely upon the belief that the intent of 
the program is to stimulate new improvements, particularly those improvements that would 
otherwise not occur without the financial assistance. The recommended change to Section 2 
would clarify that properties on which the construction of the proposed improvements have 
already been started are ineligible.  
 
Freestanding signs – Another application involved the replacement of a freestanding sign on 
South Carson Street. A majority of the RACC voted to deny the application, primarily based on 
the belief that it was not the intent of the program policies to fund freestanding signs as a 
“façade” improvement. Staff’s recommended verbiage in Section 3 would clarify that 
freestanding signs are not eligible improvements. Alternatively, the RACC may determine 
freestanding signs should be included as eligible improvements and modify the policy to 
expressly include them as eligible.  
 
Roofs – The RACC approved one application for a re-roof based on the fact that the roof was a 
visible element of the building façade (and was in dire need of repair). However, this application 
also led to debate on whether or not roofs should be included as eligible building façade 
improvements. Regardless of past interpretation, staff recommends eliminating re-roofing as an 
eligible program improvement. The façade improvement program has proven successful in that 
the available funds have been allocated, and there are many opportunities for additional 
improvements that do not include re-roofing.  
 
Other ineligible “non-façade” improvements – Staff’s recommended amendment would include a 
clarification that landscaping, paving and other improvements not affixed to the building” are not 
eligible improvements.  
 
Defining “building façade” – Completing the eligibility clarifications in addition to those noted 
above, staff recommends clarifying the definition of building façade for the purposes of the 
Façade Improvement Program to include “all portions of a building, excluding the roof, visible 
from the public right-of-way or on-site parking lot.” A façade, as it relates to architecture, can be 
defined as: 1) The front of a building, especially an imposing or decorative one; or 2) any side of 
a building facing a public way or space and finished accordingly. The goal of the program is to 
improvement the appearance of buildings. To accomplish this, all portions of the building that 
are visible from public areas should be included.  
 
The RACC may consider other recommendations to clarify these issues. Staff will bring the 
recommendations to the Redevelopment Authority/Board of Supervisors in December or 
January. If you have any questions regarding the Façade Improvement Program, please contact 
Lee Plemel at 283-7075 or lplemel@carson.org.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Façade Improvement Program Resolution  
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